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Occupying a prominent position on the west side of Broad Street, 
the Evans House does much to set the style of this area which still retains 
the flavor of one of Salem's most fashionable nineteenth century streets. 

The Evans House is set back in a wide yard enclosed by an open­
loop design cast iron fence supplied by the Camden Iron Works, Burwell and 
Market Street";, Salem. The fence is reinforced by molded posts with 
supporting buttresses and on the cast side of the fence arrows fill the loop • 
A central gate supported by cruciform posts capped by male busts, opens 
onto a basket weave patterned brick walk. 

The one-and-a-half- story Evans house is built of brick laid i 
American bond with a Flemish variant. Surrounding the base of the house is 
a twenty-eight inch high watertable. The L-shaped structure is covered 
by t~o concavely cut intersecting mansard roofs whichare pierced by two 
paneled interior chimneys with corbeled caps. The roofs are covered by 
decoratively cut tiles laid in patterns and are accentuated by a molded 
metal curb with simulated <lentils and ornamental corner brackets. A wide 
bracketed cornice interspersed with sawn decoration supports the overhang­
ing roof. Some of the decoration is sheathed with pressed tin. 

The three-bay eastern facade is symmetrically divided by a two 
story projecting central pavilion supported by a bracketed cornice and 
topped with a convexly rendered Mansard roof with metal cap and finial. 
The central entrance tower is composed of a one-bay entrance porch with a 
modillioned cornice. The support is supplied by chamfered and grooved 
posts resting on pedestals and surmounted by sawn consoles. This scheme is 
used as a decorative motif around some of the door and windows on the 
interior. The posts are joined to pilasters by an open work balustrade and' 
cast iron carriage lamps flank the ornately paneled double doors. The 
finely cut white walnut doors, separated by slender turned trumeau attached 
to the south door, are decorated with sunburst and scrollwork. mo.tifs. A 
segmental shaped transom is filled with one light of frosted glazing etched 1 in floral motifs. A molded architrave surrounds the door and a hood 
supported by brackets shades the entrance. The second story of the tower 1 

is lighted by a pair of round arched lunettes which have a vigorously molded 
hood broken by a molded pediment. Hooded oculi light the four sides of 
the tower roof. The entrance tower is flanked on the first floor by one­
over-one segmental-shaped windows surrounded by a molded architrave and 
flanked by segmental-arched double-panel louvered shutters. The windows 
rest on decorative metal lug sills and are surmounted by gauged brick 
segmental arched lintels. The one-over-one-sash round arc.hed dormers whicl 
pierce the roof have a flat end pediment cut with decorative scroll work, 

TI1e south side of the building is characterized by a two story 
Graham gable, the cross section of a 6able top convex Mansard. On the 
first floor a three-sided bay window is topped by a bracketed entablature 
and lighted by windows similar to those of the front. Rectangular metal 
panels decorate the space beneath the lug sills and a segmental shaped 
molding runs along the lintels and through the elongated brackets which 
emphasize the corners, Paired round arched windows with one-over-one 
sash illuminate the second story. The roof is outlined by curved barge­
boards which end in a sawn scroll work ornament behind which lies a louvere 
lunette. 

The thre'e-bay north side is a modified version of the south, 
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Here a north west wing has been added to the Graham gable. The windows on 
this side are similar to those on the eastern facade. A one-and-a-half story 
gab led root one-bay addition is attached to the rear of the mansard "L". A 
gable shaped dormer pierces the roofline, a simple six-over-six sash window 
lights the first floor, and an inside end chimney with a corbeled brick cap 
rises from the rear wall of the one-bay ell of the old kitchen. The rear wall 
of the kitchen has a small window under its southern eave onto which a one 
story two-bay enclosed frame porch has been incorporated. Back doors from 
the pantry and old entranceway lead onto the porch. From this western side of 
the main mass, the cross gable Mansard with bargeboards and gable ornament is 
blind except for a slender segmental arched window on the south side. 

The interior of the Evans House is marked by a central hall plan 
entered through the central entrance tower. The hall divides the library on 
the south from the parlor on the north and a flight of straight stairs on the 
north side of the hall ascend to the second story. Although the two front 
rooms are similar in dimensions their entrance doors from the front hall are 
asymmetrically placed along the walls. 

The inside of the front doors has bevelled panels separated 
vertically by a rondelle and bar motif. As on the front, a slender trumeau 
separates the double doors. The intricately patterned brass hardware is of 
particular interest. Throughout the house motifs of butterflies, vines and 
birds are combined with geometric chevrons to ornament the doorknobs, key holes 
butt hinges, door plates, and the front door bellpull. Another highly 
ornamented feature is the closed stringer oak tread stairway decorated with I 
diagonally slanted black walnut panels upon which rest the turned black walnut 
balusters. These balusters descend on a slant to the six foot black walnut 
newel post consisting of an octagonal base topped with a thirty inch decorative 
pinnacle. The bannister end post on the second story echoes the newel post. 
A closet added in 1948 now encloses the area under the stairway. 

The library in the southeast corner of the house is lit by the 
three foot deep bay window with a segmental arched molded opening supported by 
colonettes on consoles. The three windows of the bay rise above paneled 
wainscoting. The distinctive fireplace on the west wall is fashioned from 
verigated brown marble and has a round arch opening topped by a raised cartouch 
and flanked by incised spandrels. The cast iron horseshoe-shaped fireback 
and grate, like most of the fire equipment, was manufactured by Conover, Wooly 
and Co. at 368 Canal Street in New York. The doors and windows of the parlor 
in the northeast corner of the house are ornately decorated with a robustly 
executed entablature supported by paneled pilasters. In the case of the 
doors this scheme surmounts a frosted transom with floral etching. The fire­
place on the west wall is surmounted by a mirror and both panels are enframed 
in a hand-carved Nee-Renaissance motif rosewood border. The original French 
doorway leading into the dining room was replaced in the 1948 renovation by an 
archway. A second arch flanking the fireplace on the east wall of the dining 
room, is filled with a cupboard and is rendered in the Queen Anne manner. 
Chamfered pilasters with decorative diamond blocks bound the frieze with 
incised blocks encompassing stylized flowers. The decoratively chamfered 
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fireplace surround enframes glazed yellow tile bricks into which are set the 
florally decorated cast iron grate and filler. 

- The old kitchen in the northwest ell to the rear, was converted 
into a breakfast room in 1948, paneled in pine and converted to modern use. 
The old pantry to the south of the breakfast room originally contained stairs I 
to the maid's room above on the second floor. 

The doorways on the secondfloor have four delicately molded panels 
topped with a frosted transom with a floral design. Elongated, fluted 
pilasters support a robustly molded arched pediment with cornerblocks, incised 
scroll work and fan motifs. Many of the rounded arched windows on this floor 
are surmounted by a bold pediment similar to that of the doors. As on the 
first floor two tiers of multi-paneled moveable louvered interior shutters 
shade the windows. Two round arch doors at the east end of the hall lead to 
the roof of the front porch. In the southeast room the mantelpiece reflects 
the forms of the doors where grooved pilasters support a paneled frieze with 
central cartouche. In the northeast bedroom on the other hand, paneled 
spandrels flank the central console of the black marble mantelpiece. A 
curious gable topped doorway in the northwest bedroom leads down a small flight 
of stairs to the servants' quarters in the far northwest ell. These quarters 
have triangular windows on the north and west sides. The stairway to the old 
pantry in the south wall of this room has been blocked. 
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The construction of the Evans House in 1882 coincided with the 
beginning of large-scale growth around Salem. In that year the decision 
was ma.de to form a connection between the Norfolk and Western and the 
Shenandoah Valley railroads in the vie ini ty of nearby Big Lick, soon to be­
come the city of Roanoke. Although Salem successfully dodged being engulfed 
by the rapid development of Roanoke brought about by this rail junction, 
the town 1 s growth.was encouraged by the area's general prosperity. A land 
development company was soon formed in Salem and new construction appeared 
throughout the town. The Evans House thus stands as an architectural mani­
festation of the prosperity of the 1880 1 s and 90 1 s experienced in Salem, as 
well as in numerous other towns up and down the Valley of Virginia. 

Not only is the Evans House an expression of western Virginia 1 s 
boom development, it ranks among the State's richest examples of the French 
Empire Style. The architectural value of the house to the Commonwealth is 
increased by the rarity of the style in Virginia. The Second Empire Style 
flourished in the North in the years following the War Be tween the States, 
but it appeared infrequently in Virginia and the South because of the 
impoverishment resulting from the War. Ironically too, the Evans House 
is a comparatively late example of the Second Empire style. This archi- I 
tectural mode waned in national popularity in the 1870's and the choice of 
the style for the Evans House is attributed by family tradition to John N. 
Evan's French wife. While the house employs such basic motifs of the style 
as a Mansard roof, ornamented dormers and a bracketed cornice, it exhibits 
a particular individuality in skillfully disguising its relatively small 
size with a bold outline and fine proportions. Although the architect, if 
any, is unknown, the house gives a brilliantlyexecuted impresssion of mass 
and grandeur; the Evans House is the product of highly talented craftsmen. 

The Evans House stands on land which was until 1871 the tanyard 
property of Henry and later Charles L. Snyder. After the sale and division 
of the property in 1871, John Evans bought Lot No. 4 on Broad Street where 
the house now stands for four hundred and fifty dollars. Built eleven 
years after he purchased the lot, the house was valued in 1883 at $4,300. 
In contrast to its sixty-eight years as a tanyard, this area along Broad 
Street following its residential development was singled out by William 
McCauley in his History of Roanoke County, for "its tasteful residences 
with their ample and attractive yards (that) made it one of the handsomest 
thoroughfares in town." In 1891 the John M. Evans House, as one of the mos~ 
fashionable houses in the town, was chosen to appear in a publicity booklet 
of the Salem land development companies. 
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Born on April 22, 1837, John M. Evans was the son of Tifton 
13. Evans a pron'lincnt landowner near Hollins, Virginia. During the War between 
the States John Evans was a private in the "Salem Flying Artillery", Company A, 
9th Regiment Vi.r~inia Infantry. Evans came to Salem following the War and in 
1877 he w1:; listed in the Virginia Business Directory and Gazetteer as a promi­
nent farmer, owning one hun<lrccl and seventy acres, as well as a dry goods 
business on Main Street. Before his death in 1891, Evans had invested heavily 
in Salem's land boom which had started in 1889. When he died at the age of 
fifty-four John M. Evans was survived by his wife but no other heirs. In 
1898 Jacob S. Baer purchased the land at a public auction from the Evans' 
estate. The house changed hands again in 1903 when it was bought by Captain 
Adam Given and in 1907 Samuel Morris Martin procurred the house from Captain 
Given. In 1947 the present owner C, E. Webber bought the house and through 
his renovations the house has been maintained as one of Salem's major 
architectural landmarks. 
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